
Montgomery City Council 
AGENDA REPORT 

 

Meeting Date: April 13, 2021 Budgeted Amount: N/A 

Prepared By:  Dave McCorquodale 

Exhibits:  Request letter from developer; 
City letter granting exemption; City 
Council minutes of Dec. 16, 2014; letter to 
Summit Universal, LP related to a recent 
building permit application 

 

Subject 
Consideration and possible action regarding a building permit plan review fee exemption for 
Summit Universal, LP. 
 

 

Description 
In 2014, the developer of Summit Business Park requested an exemption to plan review fees for 
their development.  After considering the matter, City Council granted the request. Details of 
the request can be found in the attached letters, and a summary is as follows: 
 
Development plans called for a total of 17 buildings using 3 building designs: 

• 8 identical office buildings (Type A) 
• 5 identical office/warehouse buildings (Type B) 
• 4 identical office/warehouse buildings (Type C) 

 
The developer proposed to pay the adopted plan review fees for the first of each building type 
and then would be charged actual cost for the remaining 14 buildings.  The premise of the request 
was that the development would be built out on a rapid timeline and that the City Building 
Official would not need to conduct a thorough review of each building since they would be 
identical to a recent submittal.   
 
Currently, the development is approximately 50% built out.  Additionally, the City updated its 
building codes in 2019.  The extended build out timeline of the development coupled with 
updated building codes has created a situation where staff cannot adhere to both the adopted 
City building codes and the plan review fee exemption granted by City Council in 2014.   
 
This is the only developer granted an exemption for building permit and plan review fees in the 
City.  Staff recommends rescinding the exemption for Summit Universal, LP to allow for equal 
application of City regulations and a level playing field for all builders and developers in the 
City. 

 

Recommendation 
Discuss the matter and consider rescinding the plan review fee exemption for Summit 
Universal, LP. 

 









dmccorquodale
Text Box
Exerpt from City Council Minutes of December 16, 2014



March 22, 2021 

Mr. Michael Ogorchock, Partner 
Summit Universal, LP 
15349 Summit Business Park Drive, Ste. 101 
Montgomery, Texas 77356 

RE: 2014 City Council Action granting building permit and plan review exemptions 

Mr. Ogorchock, 

In late 2014, Summit Universal approached the City to request an exemption to the 

adopted building permit plan review fees applicable to all building projects in the City.  Specific 

details of the request included in the letter from Summit Universal, LP dated November 13, 

2014 are: 

• Summit Universal, LP would pay adopted fees for the plan review and building

permit for Office Building #1 and receive an exemption to the plan review fee

only for Office Buildings #2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 8.

• Summit Universal, LP would pay adopted fees for the plan review and building

permit on Office/Warehouse Buildings B-1 and C-1, and receive an exemption

to the plan review fee only for Buildings B-2, B-3, B-4, C-2, C-3, C-4, and C-5.

Conditions of City Council approval of the exemption granted on December 16, 2014 as stated in 

the letter from Jack Yates, Interim City Administrator dated December 17, 2014: 

• Provide a letter from your Architect stating the proposed building is exactly

like a previously approved building.

• In such case, the City will provide a Cursory Plan Review and charge only actual

costs of the plan reviewer plus a small administrative fee.

• The City Council action, along with your request, only references the shell

buildings proposed to be built by Summit Universal, LP.  The buildout of

individual suites is not referenced by any document.



You contend that the nature of the exemption granted by City Council allows Summit Universal, 

LP to submit 2014-dated drawings that do not accurately depict the proposed 2021 work.  Said 

simply, the architectural plans and the MEP drawings do not match.  The submittal does not 

comply with the requirement that the proposed building be exactly like a previously approved 

building permit.  City Council granted an exemption specifically related to plan review fees for 

previously approved buildings, not an exemption from submitting a complete set of construction 

drawings. 

After researching City records and meeting details of the City Council action of December 16, 

2014, City staff believes there are enough substantive questions to warrant an affirmation or 

dissolution of the exemption granted by City Council.  Notably, that all previously approved 

building plans were approved under a different Building Code edition than what the City currently 

uses.  Staff intends to place the item on the April 13, 2021 meeting agenda for City Council review. 

If you have any questions or need any additional information, please feel free to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Dave McCorquodale, RLA, CPM 

Assistant City Administrator 

Director of Planning & Development 
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